The City Council of the City of Mattoon held a regular meeting in the City Hall Council Chambers on February 6, 2018.

Mayor Gover presided and called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

Mayor Gover led the Pledge of Allegiance.

The following members of the Council answered roll call physically present: YEA Commissioner Dave Cox, YEA Commissioner Sandra Graven, YEA Commissioner Rick Hall, YEA Commissioner Preston Owen, and YEA Mayor Tim Gover.

Also physically present were City personnel: City Administrator Kyle Gill, City Attorney Daniel C. Jones, Finance Director/Treasurer Beth Wright, Public Works Director Dean Barber, Assistant Fire Chief Sean Junge, Police Chief Jason Taylor, Arts & Tourism Director Angelia Burgett, Library Director Carl Walworth, and City Clerk Susan O'Brien.

CONSENT AGENDA

Mayor Gover seconded by Commissioner Hall moved to approve the consent agenda consisting of minutes of the regular meeting January 16, 2018; bills and payroll for the last half of January, 2018.

Bills & Payroll last half of January, 2018

	<u>General Fund</u>			
Payroll			\$	245,712.30
Bills			\$	89,211.18
		Total	\$	334,923.48
	Hotel Tax Administration			
Payroll			\$	2,442.82
Bills			\$	1,224.66
		Total	\$	3,667.48
Bills	Festival Mgmt Fund			
			\$	2,417.34
		Total	\$	2,417.34
	Insurance & Tort Jdgmnt			
Bills			\$	71,399.27
		Total	\$	71,399.27
Bills	Capital Project			
			\$	20,224.37
		Total	\$	20,224.37
Payroll Bills	Water Fund		•	
			\$	46,948.44
			\$	87,295.31
		Total	\$	134,243.75

	Sewer Fund		
Payroll			\$ 46,980.47
Bills			\$ 44,133.65
		Total	\$ 91,114.12
	Health Insurance Fund		
Bills			\$ 305,667.20
		Total	\$ 305,667.20
	Motor Fuel Tax		
Bills			\$ 5,344.97
		Total	\$ 5,344.97

Mayor Gover opened the floor for comments/questions with no response.

Mayor Gover declared the motion to approve consent agenda carried by the following vote: YEA Commissioner Cox, YEA Commissioner Graven, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Owen, YEA Mayor Gover.

PRESENTATIONS, PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

Mayor Gover opened the floor for Public comments with no response. Commissioner Hall explained the mapping committee and a request to have Ride Illinois, a non-profit organization, create a bike plan with a bike committee and citizens group for our community. A Foundation has agreed to pay the \$13,000 cost of creating a bike plan for the City. Commissioner Hall was asking for support from the Council to continue. Mayor Gover noted this would apply with the strategic plan. Mr. Ed Dowd, Executive Director or the Chamber, stated this would tie together with Amtrak for visitors to the community as well. The Council's consensus was to continue with the bike plan. Mayor Gover opened the floor for additional questions with no response.

NEW BUSINESS

Commissioner Cox seconded by Commissioner Graven moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2018-5402, authorizing the issuance of Sewerage System Revenue Bonds of the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois to finance improvement to the City's Sewerage System. [CSO Satellite Treatment Facility Piping project]

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS

ORDINANCE NO. 2018-5402

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF SEWERAGE SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS OF THE CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS TO FINANCE IMPROVEMENTS TO THE CITY'S SEWERAGE SYSTEM

WHEREAS, the City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois (the "City") is a duly organized and existing non-home rule unit of government and municipality of the State of Illinois and is now operating under the provisions of the Illinois Municipal Code, as amended (the "Code"), and operates a municipally owned sewerage system pursuant to Division 141 of Article 11 of the Code; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the "Council") has determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the best interests of the City to acquire, construct, extend and improve the existing sewerage system of the City, including the construction and installation of piping to connect various overflow points throughout the existing sewerage system to the overflow satellite treatment facility (the "Project"), all in accordance with the preliminary plans and estimates on file in the office of the City Clerk, and there are insufficient funds on hand and lawfully available to pay such costs; and

WHEREAS, the estimated costs of the Project, including legal fees and all other costs of issuance related to the issuance of bonds, is \$12,500,000; and

WHEREAS, the City is authorized under the provisions of the Code and the Local Government Debt Reform Act, as amended, to incur indebtedness and issue and sell its Sewerage System Revenue Bonds (the "Revenue Bonds") in an aggregate principal amount of not to exceed \$12,500,000; and

WHEREAS, the Revenue Bonds will be payable solely from a pledge of the net revenues of the City's sewerage system (the "Net Revenues"); and

WHEREAS, the Revenue Bonds are expected to be purchased by the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MATTOON, COLES COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Incorporation of Recitals. The Council hereby finds that the recitals to this Ordinance are true, complete and correct and hereby incorporates them into this Ordinance.

Section 2. Determination to Issue Bonds. It is necessary and in the best interests of the City to undertake the Project in accordance with the preliminary plans and estimates described above and the Revenue Bonds are hereby authorized to be issued for such purpose and sold from time to time in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed \$12,500,000.

Section 3. Publications. Within ten (10) days after the adoption of this Ordinance by the Council, this Ordinance preceded by the notice in substantially the form attached hereto as

Exhibit A shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City. If no petition asking that the issuance of the Revenue Bonds be submitted to referendum, signed by 10% or more of the number of registered voters in the City is filed with the City Clerk within thirty (30) days after the date of the publication of this Ordinance and said notice, then the Revenue Bonds shall be authorized to be issued.

Section 4. Additional Ordinances. If no petition meeting the requirements of applicable law is filed during the petition period referred to above, then the Council may adopt additional ordinances or proceedings supplementing or amending this Ordinance providing for the issuance and sale of the Revenue Bonds and prescribing all the details of the Revenue Bonds so long as the maximum amount of the Revenue Bonds as set forth in this Ordinance is not exceeded and there is no material change in the Project or the purposes described herein. Such additional ordinances or proceedings shall in all instances become effective immediately without publication or posting or any further act or requirement. This Ordinance, together with such additional ordinances or proceedings, shall constitute complete authority for the issuance of the Revenue Bonds under applicable law.

Section 5. Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the other provisions of this Ordinance.

Section 6. Repealer. All ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed.

Upon motion by <u>Commissioner Cox</u> seconded by <u>Commissioner Graven</u> adopted this $\underline{6}^{th}$ day of <u>February</u>, 2018, by a roll call vote, as follows:

AYES (Names):	Commissioner Cox, Commissioner Graven,
	Commissioner Hall, Commissioner Owen,
	Mayor Gover
NAYS (Names):	None
ABSENT (Names):	None

Approved this 6th day of February, 2018.

<u>/s/Tim Gover</u> Tim Gover, Mayor City of Mattoon, Coles County, Illinois

ATTEST:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

<u>/s/Susan J. O'Brien</u> Susan J. O'Brien, City Clerk <u>/s/Daniel C. Jones</u> Daniel C. Jones, City Attorney

Recorded in the Municipality's Records on February 6, 2018.

Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions/comments/discussion with no response.

Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote: YEA Commissioner Cox, YEA Commissioner Graven, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Owen, YEA Mayor Gover.

Commissioner Owen seconded by Commissioner Cox moved to approve Council Decision Request 2018-1822, approving a water adjustment in the amount of \$2,014.50 for Suite Dreams Hospitality due to a water leak.

Mayor Gover noted the reason for the agenda item was due to the amount exceeding \$1,000 which takes Council action. Mayor Gover opened the floor for comments/questions with no response.

Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote: YEA Commissioner Cox, Abstain due to working relationship Commissioner Graven, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Owen, YEA Mayor Gover.

Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Owen moved to adopt Resolution No. 2018-3010, giving notice to the Illinois Department of Transportation of the 4th of July parade to be sponsored by the City of Mattoon.

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-3010

WHEREAS, the **City of Mattoon** is sponsoring a **Parade** in the **City of Mattoon** which event constitutes a public purpose;

WHEREAS, this **Parade** will require the temporary closure of **US 45 / IL 121**, a State Highway in the **City of Mattoon** from **Western Avenue to Broadway Ave**;

WHEREAS, Section 4-408 of the Illinois Highway Code authorizes the Department of Transportation to issue permits to local authorities to temporarily close portions of State Highways for such public purposes.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the **Council** of the **City of Mattoon** that permission to close off **US 45 / IL 121** from **Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue** as above designated, be requested of the Department of Transportation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure shall occur during the approximate time period between **9:00 AM** and **10:30 AM** on **July 04, 2018**.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure is for the public purpose of the 4^{th} of July Parade.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that traffic from the closed portion of highway shall be detoured over routes with an all weather surface that can accept the anticipated traffic, which will be maintained to the satisfaction of the Department and which is conspicuously marked for the benefit of traffic diverted from the State Highway. (The parking of vehicles shall be prohibited on the detour route to allow an uninterrupted flow of two-way traffic.)* The detour shall be as follows: The parade will only be crossing the State route at an angle from Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue; therefore, a detour will not be necessary due to the ability to open the road to traffic as required.

*To be used when appropriate.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the **City of Mattoon** assumes full responsibility for the direction, protection and regulation of the traffic during the time the detour is in effect.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the police officers or authorized flaggers shall at the expense of the **City of Mattoon** be positioned at each end of the closed section and at other points (such as intersections) as may be necessary to assist in directing traffic through the detour.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that police officers, flaggers and officials shall permit emergency vehicles in emergency situations to pass through the closed area as swiftly as is safe for all concerned.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all debris shall be removed by the **City of Mattoon** prior to reopening the State Highway.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that such signs, flags, barricades, etc., shall be used by the **City of Mattoon** as may be approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation. These items shall be provided by the **City of Mattoon**.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the closure and the detour shall be marked according to the Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that an occasional break shall be made in the procession so that traffic may pass through. In any event, adequate provisions will be made for the traffic on intersecting highways pursuant to conditions noted above. (Note: This paragraph is applicable when the Resolution pertains to a Parade or when a detour is required)

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that to the fullest extent permitted by law, the **City of Mattoon** shall be responsible for any and all injuries to persons or damages to property, and shall indemnify and hold harmless the Illinois Department of Transportation, its officers, employees and agents from any and all claims, lawsuits, actions, costs and fees (including reasonable attorney's fees and expenses) of every nature or description, arising out of, resulting from or connected with the exercise of authority granted by the Department which is the subject of this resolution. The obligation is binding upon the **City of Mattoon** regardless of whether or not such claim, damage or loss or expense is caused in part by the act, omission or negligence of the Department or its officers, employees or agents.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the **City of Mattoon** shall provide a comprehensive general liability insurance policy or an additional endorsement in the amount of \$1,000,000 per person and \$2,000,000 on aggregate which as the Illinois Department of Transportation and its officials, employees and agents as insureds and which protects them from all claims arising from the requested road closing. A copy of said policy or endorsement will be provided to the Department before the road is closed.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Department of Transportation so serve as a formal request for the permission sought in this resolution and to operate as part of the conditions of said permission.

APPROVED, and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon this <u>6th</u> day of <u>February</u>, **2018** A.D.

/s/Tim Gover MAYOR

ATTEST:

<u>/s/Susan J. O'Brien</u> MUNICIPAL CLERK

Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote: YEA Commissioner Cox, YEA Commissioner Graven, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Owen, YEA Mayor Gover.

Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Cox moved to adopt Resolution No. 2018-3011, giving notice to the Illinois Department of Transportation of the Bagelfest parade to be sponsored by the City of Mattoon.

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-3011

WHEREAS, the **City of Mattoon** is sponsoring a **Parade** in the **City of Mattoon** which event constitutes a public purpose;

WHEREAS, this **Parade** will require the temporary closure of **US 45 / IL 121**, a State Highway in the **City of Mattoon** from **Western Avenue to Broadway Ave**;

WHEREAS, Section 4-408 of the Illinois Highway Code authorizes the Department of Transportation to issue permits to local authorities to temporarily close portions of State Highways for such public purposes.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the **Council** of the **City of Mattoon** that permission to close off **US 45 / IL 121** from **Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue** as above designated, be requested of the Department of Transportation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure shall occur during the approximate time period between **10:30 AM** and **11:30 AM** on **July 21, 2018**.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure is for the public purpose of the **Bagelfest Parade**.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that traffic from the closed portion of highway shall be detoured over routes with an all weather surface that can accept the anticipated traffic, which will be maintained to the satisfaction of the Department and which is conspicuously marked for the benefit of traffic diverted from the State Highway. (The parking of vehicles shall be prohibited on the detour route to allow an uninterrupted flow of two-way traffic.)* The detour shall be as follows: **The parade will only be crossing the State route at an angle from Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue; therefore, a detour will not be necessary due to the ability to open the road to traffic as required.**

*To be used when appropriate.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the **City of Mattoon** assumes full responsibility for the direction, protection and regulation of the traffic during the time the detour is in effect.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the police officers or authorized flaggers shall at the expense of the **City of Mattoon** be positioned at each end of the closed section and at other points (such as intersections) as may be necessary to assist in directing traffic through the detour.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that police officers, flaggers and officials shall permit emergency vehicles in emergency situations to pass through the closed area as swiftly as is safe for all concerned.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all debris shall be removed by the **City of Mattoon** prior to reopening the State Highway.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that such signs, flags, barricades, etc., shall be used by the **City of Mattoon** as may be approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation. These items shall be provided by the **City of Mattoon**.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the closure and the detour shall be marked according to the Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that an occasional break shall be made in the procession so that traffic may pass through. In any event, adequate provisions will be made for the traffic on intersecting highways pursuant to conditions noted above. (Note: This paragraph is applicable when the Resolution pertains to a Parade or when a detour is required)

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that to the fullest extent permitted by law, the **City of Mattoon** shall be responsible for any and all injuries to persons or damages to property, and shall indemnify and hold harmless the Illinois Department of Transportation, its officers, employees and agents from any and all claims, lawsuits, actions, costs and fees (including reasonable attorney's fees and expenses) of every nature or description, arising out of, resulting from or connected with the exercise of authority granted by the Department which is the subject of this resolution. The obligation is binding upon the **City of Mattoon** regardless of whether or not such claim, damage or loss or expense is caused in part by the act, omission or negligence of the Department or its officers, employees or agents.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the **City of Mattoon** shall provide a comprehensive general liability insurance policy or an additional endorsement in the amount of \$1,000,000 per person and \$2,000,000 on aggregate which as the Illinois Department of Transportation and its officials, employees and agents as insureds and which protects them from all claims arising from the requested road closing. A copy of said policy or endorsement will be provided to the Department before the road is closed.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Department of Transportation so serve as a formal request for the permission sought in this resolution and to operate as part of the conditions of said permission.

APPROVED, and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon this <u>6th</u> day of <u>February</u>, **2018** A.D.

/s/Timothy D. Gover MAYOR

ATTEST:

<u>/s/Susan J. O'Brien</u> MUNICIPAL CLERK

Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions/comments/discussion with no response.

Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote: YEA Commissioner Cox, YEA Commissioner Graven, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Owen, YEA Mayor Gover.

Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Cox moved to adopt Resolution No. 2018-3012, giving notice to the Illinois Department of Transportation of the Veterans Day parade to be sponsored by the City of Mattoon.

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-3012

WHEREAS, the **City of Mattoon** is sponsoring a **Parade** in the **City of Mattoon** which event constitutes a public purpose;

WHEREAS, this **Parade** will require the temporary closure of **US 45 / IL 121**, a State Highway in the **City of Mattoon** from **Western Avenue to Broadway Ave**;

WHEREAS, Section 4-408 of the Illinois Highway Code authorizes the Department of Transportation to issue permits to local authorities to temporarily close portions of State Highways for such public purposes.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the **Council** of the **City of Mattoon** that permission to close off **US 45 / IL 121** from **Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue** as above designated, be requested of the Department of Transportation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure shall occur during the approximate time period between **10:00 AM** and **11:00 AM** on **November 11, 2018**.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure is for the public purpose of the **Veterans Day Parade**.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that traffic from the closed portion of highway shall be detoured over routes with an all weather surface that can accept the anticipated traffic, which will be maintained to the satisfaction of the Department and which is conspicuously marked for the benefit of traffic diverted from the State Highway. (The parking of vehicles shall be prohibited on the detour route to allow an uninterrupted flow of two-way traffic.)* The detour shall be as follows: **The parade will only be crossing the State route at an angle from Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue; therefore, a detour will not be necessary due to the ability to open the road to traffic as required.**

*To be used when appropriate.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the **City of Mattoon** assumes full responsibility for the direction, protection and regulation of the traffic during the time the detour is in effect.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the police officers or authorized flaggers shall at the expense of the **City of Mattoon** be positioned at each end of the closed section and at other points (such as intersections) as may be necessary to assist in directing traffic through the detour.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that police officers, flaggers and officials shall permit emergency vehicles in emergency situations to pass through the closed area as swiftly as is safe for all concerned.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all debris shall be removed by the **City of Mattoon** prior to reopening the State Highway.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that such signs, flags, barricades, etc., shall be used by the **City of Mattoon** as may be approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation. These items shall be provided by the **City of Mattoon**.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the closure and the detour shall be marked according to the Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that an occasional break shall be made in the procession so that traffic may pass through. In any event, adequate provisions will be made for the traffic on intersecting highways pursuant to conditions noted above. (Note: This paragraph is applicable when the Resolution pertains to a Parade or when a detour is required)

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that to the fullest extent permitted by law, the **City of Mattoon** shall be responsible for any and all injuries to persons or damages to property, and shall indemnify and hold harmless the Illinois Department of Transportation, its officers, employees and agents from any and all claims, lawsuits, actions, costs and fees (including reasonable attorney's fees and expenses) of every nature or description, arising out of, resulting from or connected with the exercise of authority granted by the Department which is the subject of this resolution. The obligation is binding upon the **City of Mattoon** regardless of whether or not such claim, damage or loss or expense is caused in part by the act, omission or negligence of the Department or its officers, employees or agents.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the **City of Mattoon** shall provide a comprehensive general liability insurance policy or an additional endorsement in the amount of \$1,000,000 per person and \$2,000,000 on aggregate which as the Illinois Department of Transportation and its officials, employees and agents as insureds and which protects them from all claims arising from the requested road closing. A copy of said policy or endorsement will be provided to the Department before the road is closed.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Department of Transportation so serve as a formal request for the permission sought in this resolution and to operate as part of the conditions of said permission.

APPROVED, and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon this <u>6th</u> day of <u>February</u>, **2018** A.D.

/s/Timothy D. Gover MAYOR

ATTEST:

<u>/s/Susan J. O'Brien</u> MUNICIPAL CLERK

Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions/comments with no response.

Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote: YEA Commissioner Cox, YEA Commissioner Graven, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Owen, YEA Mayor Gover.

Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Graven moved to adopt Resolution No. 2018-3013, giving notice to the Illinois Department of Transportation of the Christmas parade to be sponsored by the City of Mattoon.

CITY OF MATTOON, ILLINOIS

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-3013

WHEREAS, the **City of Mattoon** is sponsoring a **Parade** in the **City of Mattoon** which event constitutes a public purpose;

WHEREAS, this **Parade** will require the temporary closure of **US 45 / IL 121**, a State Highway in the **City of Mattoon** from **Western Avenue to Broadway Ave**;

WHEREAS, Section 4-408 of the Illinois Highway Code authorizes the Department of Transportation to issue permits to local authorities to temporarily close portions of State Highways for such public purposes.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the **Council** of the **City of Mattoon** that permission to close off **US 45 / IL 121** from **Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue** as above designated, be requested of the Department of Transportation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure shall occur during the approximate time period between 1:00 PM and 2:00 PM on November 17, 2018.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this closure is for the public purpose of the **Christmas Parade**.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that traffic from the closed portion of highway shall be detoured over routes with an all weather surface that can accept the anticipated traffic, which will

be maintained to the satisfaction of the Department and which is conspicuously marked for the benefit of traffic diverted from the State Highway. (The parking of vehicles shall be prohibited on the detour route to allow an uninterrupted flow of two-way traffic.)* The detour shall be as follows: **The parade will only be crossing the State route at an angle from Western Avenue to Broadway Avenue; therefore, a detour will not be necessary due to the ability to open the road to traffic as required.**

*To be used when appropriate.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the **City of Mattoon** assumes full responsibility for the direction, protection and regulation of the traffic during the time the detour is in effect.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the police officers or authorized flaggers shall at the expense of the **City of Mattoon** be positioned at each end of the closed section and at other points (such as intersections) as may be necessary to assist in directing traffic through the detour.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that police officers, flaggers and officials shall permit emergency vehicles in emergency situations to pass through the closed area as swiftly as is safe for all concerned.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all debris shall be removed by the **City of Mattoon** prior to reopening the State Highway.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that such signs, flags, barricades, etc., shall be used by the **City of Mattoon** as may be approved by the Illinois Department of Transportation. These items shall be provided by the **City of Mattoon**.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the closure and the detour shall be marked according to the Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that an occasional break shall be made in the procession so that traffic may pass through. In any event, adequate provisions will be made for the traffic on intersecting highways pursuant to conditions noted above. (Note: This paragraph is applicable when the Resolution pertains to a Parade or when a detour is required)

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that to the fullest extent permitted by law, the **City of Mattoon** shall be responsible for any and all injuries to persons or damages to property, and shall indemnify and hold harmless the Illinois Department of Transportation, its officers, employees and agents from any and all claims, lawsuits, actions, costs and fees (including reasonable attorney's fees and expenses) of every nature or description, arising out of, resulting from or connected with the exercise of authority granted by the Department which is the subject of this resolution. The obligation is binding upon the **City of Mattoon** regardless of whether or not such claim, damage or loss or expense is caused in part by the act, omission or negligence of the Department or its officers, employees or agents. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the **City of Mattoon** shall provide a comprehensive general liability insurance policy or an additional endorsement in the amount of \$1,000,000 per person and \$2,000,000 on aggregate which as the Illinois Department of Transportation and its officials, employees and agents as insureds and which protects them from all claims arising from the requested road closing. A copy of said policy or endorsement will be provided to the Department before the road is closed.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Department of Transportation so serve as a formal request for the permission sought in this resolution and to operate as part of the conditions of said permission.

APPROVED, and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Mattoon this <u>6th</u> day of <u>February</u>, **2018** A.D.

/s/Timothy D. Gover MAYOR

ATTEST:

<u>/s/Susan J. O'Brien</u> MUNICIPAL CLERK

Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions/comments/discussion with no response.

Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote: YEA Commissioner Cox, YEA Commissioner Graven, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Owen, YEA Mayor Gover.

Mayor Gover noted the parade resolutions are for IDOT since the parade route crosses 19th Street, a State Highway.

Commissioner Cox seconded by Commissioner Graven moved to approve Council Decision Request 2018-1823, rejecting the bid from RE Pedrotti due to disqualification and awarding the bid to Durkin Equipment Company in the amount of \$224,000 for the Water Treatment Plant SCADA (Supervisory Controls and Data Acquisition) upgrades.

Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions/comments/discussion. Director Barber explained the recommendation from the Public Works Advisory Board and the difficulty with Pedrotti completing projects in a timely manner. Mayor Gover stated the benefit for the audience as to why the City did not accept the lowest bid.

Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote: YEA Commissioner Cox, YEA Commissioner Graven, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Owen, YEA Mayor Gover.

DEPARTMENT REPORTS:

CITY ADMINISTRATOR/COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT noted Community Development was slow due to the weather, but were cleaning up properties; and noted progress with the budget and labor contracts. Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions with no response.

CITY ATTORNEY noted business as usual, no reimbursement check from Pierce as of today, and the City's invoice sent to the Pierce attorneys. Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions with no response.

CITY CLERK noted business as usual and early voting for the Primary Election to start on Thursday with the Primary Election on March 20, 2018. Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions with no response.

FINANCE announced budget worksheets were compiled from Department Head requests and upcoming meetings with Department Heads to review their requests; and renewed the natural gas contract from .3245/therm to .325/therm with a 24-month contract and an electrical contract from .04975/kwh to .04758/kwh with a 36-month contract. Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions with no response.

PUBLIC WORKS announced the new Public Works Building was finished and crews were moving into the building. Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions. Commissioner Hall asked about the oil and chip for road maintenance. Director Barber noted the bid documents were normally ready in March.

FIRE noted Mattoon assisted Charleston with a fire on January 30th and our crews responded to a fire at 921 S. 15th Street; and updated Council on the grant applications for AFG packs and small equipment for a washing machine to wash gear. Assistant Chief Junge stated the grants were completed by Capt. Rex Barnes, Firefighter Dillon Kircher and Engineer Don Seibert.

POLICE stated all was well. Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions with no response.

LIBRARY complimented his employees on Library programs; announced several activities to be conducted at the Library: youth chess, adult chess, youth game night, family game night, Chinese New Year event, adult discussion group, and classical guitarist; and acknowledged a donation to support the collection of the Library.

ARTS AND TOURISM reported on the end of planning of the 2018 Lightworks – purchasing of lights and displays, preparation of Bagelfest with entertainment booked, mapping groups on side project, grant schedule for FY18/19, budgets, Herbfest in Lytle Park, new art showcase in March, and a upcoming quilt workshop. Mayor Gover opened the floor for questions with no response.

COMMENTS BY THE COUNCIL

Commissioner Graven thanked Director Barber and Administrative Assistant Debbie Crean for their extra efforts with the Streets Department. Commissioners Cox, Hall, and Owen had no further comments.

Mayor Gover seconded by Commissioner Hall moved to recessed to closed session at 7:03 p.m. pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act for the purpose of the discussion of collective negotiating matters between the City of Mattoon and its employees or their representatives, or deliberations concerning salary schedules for one or more classes of employees (5ILCS/20 (2)(C)(2)).

Gover over declared the motion carried by the following vote: YEA Commissioner Cox, YEA Commissioner Graven, YEA Commissioner Hall, YEA Commissioner Owen, YEA Mayor Gover.

Council reconvened at 8:14 p.m.

Commissioner Hall seconded by Commissioner Cox moved to adjourn at 8:14 p.m.

Mayor Gover declared the motion carried by the following vote: YEA Commissioner Cox, YEA Commissioner Graven, YEA Commissioner Hall, NAY Commissioner Owen, YEA Mayor Gover.

> /s/Susan J. O'Brien City Clerk